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Dacca Twist Co., bleachers, Horwich vale,—
W. Chambers, manager

Danchell F. Hahn & Co., peat charcoal manu­
facturers, and peat work contractors, Red
Moss works

Derbyshire Ann, beer retailer, Lee lane 
Dickinson James, clogger, Lee lane 
Dickinson James, shopkeepeper, Church st 
Dickinson James, clogger, Chapel street 
Dickinson Richard, farmer, Sharrocks farm 
Dickinson W., boot & shoemaker, Church st 
Emmett William H., surgeon, Angle bank 
Exton Rachel, draper and grocer, Lee lane 
Fisher Thomas and Son, druggists, grocers,

seedsmen and dealers in oils, paints and
colors, Lee lane

Fletcher Hannah (Mrs.), farmer, Pendleburys
Gaskell Peter & Co., cotton spinners, Pearl

brook mi^l 
Gee Henry Marsden, boot and shoe maker,

Bridge house
Gorton Elizabeth, farmer, Old lords farm 
Greenhalgh William, cotton spinner & doubler,

Wilderswood and Foxhole mills 
Gregory Mary Ann, farmer, Bolton fold 
Gregory William, farmer, Old harts 
Hargreaves Richard, tin plate worker, Lee

lane
Harper William, shopkeeper, Church street 
Harrison & Smith, Quarry masters, Dairy hole
Harrison John, beer retailer, stonemason and

contractor, Lee lane 
Harrison Richard, quarry master, Pilkington

delf, and shopkeeper, Lee lane 
Harrison Thomas, quarry master, Old lords

height, and beer retailer, Pearl brook 
Hart William W., butcher and farmer, Pearl

brook
Harter Robert, grocer and carrier, Dog lane 
Haslam Elizabeth (Mrs.),farmer, Brazley brow
Haslam William, farmer, Claypool 
Heath Elijah, manager, Peak terrace 
Heys Peter, quarry master, Moorgate, and

farmer, Wilson fold 
Holt William, Crown Inn, and brewer, New

road
Hood Thomas, Brown cow, Church street 
Horrocks John, farmer, Wilson fold 
Howard and Foster, cotton spinners, Albert

mills
Howarth John H., bookkeeper, Church street 
Howarth Thomas, bookkeeper, Church street 
Hurst William and Richard, manufacturing

chemists, Pearlbrook
Hutchinson and Topp, bleachers, Wilderswood 
jsherwood Thomas, beer retailer, Lee lane

 

 

 

 

Johnson Charles, farmer, Masr * Id, Thomas
Sledge, bailiff 

Jolly Henry H., butcher, Lee lane 
Jolly, Jackson, and Stead, bleachers, Horwich

vale
Jolly John, shopkeeper, Lee lane 
Kay Moses, shopkeeper, Nelson street 
Kay William, overlooker, Church street 
Kershaw William, Sportsman's Arms Inn, near

the pike
Kershaw William, plasterer, paper-hLiger, 

plumber, glazier, slater, and slate merchant, 
Church street, and Railway station—see 
advertisement. 

Kershaw William & Co., joiners, builders and 
timber merchants, Church street & Railway 
station—see advertisement 

Langton Mrs. Ellen, farmer, Vale 
Lawton William, beer retailer, Nelson street 
Lee Robert, butcher and beer retailer, New

road
Liddell Helen, druj- 1st, Lee lane 
Livesey Alice, milliner, Gorton row 
Livesey Alice, wheelwright, Gorton fold 
Longworth J. and N., bleachers, and coal pro-

prietors
Makinson William, joiner, Nelson street 
Mason Adam, coal proprietor, and manufac­ 

turer of fire clay and -terra cotta wares, 
Winterhill and Pearlbrook works 

Mason Thomas, grocer and draper, Church-st 
Mason William James, clogger, Lee lane 
Mayhall Thomas, shopkeeper, Dog lane 
Nightingale Henry, tailor, Lee lane 
Nuttall Israel, master of Lee Chapel Congre­ 

gational School, Lee lane 
Nuttell Thomas, shopkeeper, near Toll bar 
Nuttall William, shopkesper, Chapel street 
Ormrod Lydia, font dealer, Lee lane 
Owen James and Owen, farmers, New close 
Owen Owen, Moorgate Inn, Bottom o'th moor 
Peak Andrew, fire brick and terra cotta man- 

facturer, and colliery proprietor, Wilders­ 
wood colliery

Pendlebury Abraham, tailor and draper, 
Church street

Pendlebury E. and J., milliners, Church-st 
Petty Joseph, butcher and farmer, Dog lane 
Pimbley Charles, saddler, Lee lane 
Pimbley Elizabeth, beer retailer, Pearlbrook 
Ramwell James, farmer, Nevy fold 
Rawlinson George, beer retailer and brewer, 

New road
Rawlinson Joseph, joiner and builder, Gorton 

fold
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Rawsthorn William, relieving officer for West
Houghton district, and postmaster, Post
office, Church street 

Bidgway Thomas and Co., bleachers and dyers,
Wallsuches

Rigby James, farmer, Foxholes 
Robinson Thomas, clogger and draper, Church

street 
Robertson Alexander Stuart, M.D., surgeon,

Lee house
Seddon William, joiner, Lee lane 
Shaw Elizabeth, beer retailer, Tup row 
Sidebottom Alfred, beer retailer, Church st 
Sidebottom Alfred, shopkeeper and black­

smith, Chapel street
Sledge Thomas, farm bailiff, Mason fold 
Smith Johu and Brothers, farmers, Boardmans
Smith Richard, farmer, Marklands 
Smith William, shopkeeper, Lee lane 
Stones Robert, shopkeeper, Chapel street 
Stubbs Thomas, tailor, ,Church street

 
 

 

 

Stubbs Joseph, tailor, draper and hatter,
Bridge house

Sumner Jane, milliner, Church street 
Taylor Henry, shopkeeper, Lee lane 
Thorp William, registrar of birth and deaths

for the Horwich district and parish clerk,
Church street

Turner Doctor, shopkeeper, Dog lane 
Tyrer Thomas, Black Bull Inn and farmer,

Church street
Walch James, painter, Lee lane 
Walls John, boot and shoemaker, agent for the

Royal Liver Friendly and Chorley Family
Funeral Societies, Lee lane 

Walsh Ana, butcher and farmer, Lee lane 
Whittaker Grace, shopkeeper, near Toll bar 
Whittle William, stationer, Lee lane 
Wilkinson Ann, shopkeeper and shoe dealer,

Lee lane 
Wilson William, manager, Lee lane

LITTLE HULTON.
LITTLE HTJLTON is a township in the parish 
of Deane, 3| miles south from Bolton, and 2 j 
miles from Halshaw moor station. The town­ 
ship comprises an area of 1,470 statute acres, 
the rateablevalue in Mar., 1866,was £12,103, 
March, 1868, ,£15,224, and in March, 1870, 
£17,023. Peel hall, the residence of Mrs. H. 
Blair, and Old Peel Hall, the property of Lord
Kenyon, are situated in this township. Coal
abounds in this locality. The church of St. 
Paul is a small plain building, with turret and
one bell. The living is of the annual value of
XI50, with residence, and about 11 acres of
glebe, in the gift of the Bight Hon. Lord

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Airey Rev. George, M.A., Peel parsonage 
Atkui William, Esq., barrister-at-law, Prim­

rose Mil
Bennett Matthew, Esq., J.P., Moorside house
Blair Mrs. H., Peel hall 
Charlton Francis, Esq., The Rothwells 
Charlton Captain, Hilton lane 
Charlton Thomas, Esq. 
Clarke Mr. Edward, Greenheys house 
Cook Mr. James, Greenheys house 
Dyson Mr. Eli, Worsley road 
Gibson John, Esq., Hilton bank 
Goidon Eev. John, Wharton manse 
Green William, Esq., Wharton hall .

Kenyon; the Rev. George Airey, M.A., is 
the present vicar; there are also chapels for 
Primitive Methodists and Wesleyans, and a 
National School.

Post & Money Order Office,—Thomas Hill, 
sub-postmaster. Letters arrive by foot mess­ 

 enger from Bolton at 7-30 a.m. and 4.30 p.m., 
 and are despatched at 9 a.m. and 5.35 p.m.

 National School, Samuel Heyes, master, Miss
 M. E. Fryer, mistress 
 Wharton Presbyterian School, Jane Johnson,

mistress

Herbert Rev. John, M.A., Tynes bank 
Hodson Thomas, Esq., Tynes bank 
Martin William Y. Esq, Buckley house 

COMMERCIAL.
 Aldred John, shopkeeper 

Alien James, shopkeeper 
Ashton Betty, farmer, Brookhouse 
Ashton John, butcher 
Astle Samuel, beer retailer 
Bennett Matthew and Brothers, coal pro­ 

prietors, Peel colliery 
Bank Colliery Company, Hanging bank 
Barlow John, shopkeeper 
Barlow Samuel, shopkeeper 
Bennett James, farmer
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Bennett John, shopkeeper
Berry Thomas, beer retailer
Bridge Thomas, beer retailer
Brown William, butcher
Bridgewater (trustees of the late Duke of)

coal proprietors
Brierley James, saddler
Burton William, shopkeeper
Burniston John, confectioner
Charlton Francis, coal proprietor
Charlton Henry, butcher
Charlton Thomas, surgeon
Clarke Simeon, beer retailer
Clarke and Cooke, manufacturers of quilt-

ings, &c., Greenheys mills
Clegg Andrew, shopkeeper, Street gate
Clegg David, beer retailer and shopkeeper
Oottoii Moses, shopkeeper
Co-operative Spinning Co., Limited, cotton

spinners
Crompton Peter, provision dealer, Moor side
Crompton William, shopkeeper
Critchley John, beer retailer
Dawson Mary, shopkeeper
Dearden Joseph, beer retailer
Dyson Eli, cotton spinner, Brookhouse mill
Edge Henry, butcher
Eckersley John, beer retailer
Gibson John and Co., coal proprietors
Green William, farmer, Wharton hall
Gregory Thomas, farmer
Greenhalgh John, beer retailer
Gregory Joshua, Antelope Inn
Groves Thomas, shopkeeper
Grundy David, shopkeeper
Grundy Hamer, farmer, Brin farm
Grundy Thomas, farmer, Moor side
Grundy Thomas, shopkeeper
Grundy Thomas, farmer. Providence
Guest Thomas, farmer
Hadfield Peter, painter
Hampson James, shopkeeper
Hargreaves Isabella, confectioner
Heathcote James, beer retailer and clogger
Hesketh John, farmer, Old Peel Hall
Heys Abraham, shopkeeper
Higginbotham Benjamin, shopkeeper
Higginbotham Jonathan, blacksmith
Higginbottom Samuel, farmer, Hilton lane
Higham James, shopkeeper
Higson John, shopkeeper
Hill Thomas, shopkeeper & sub-postmaster
HillierAnn, Blue bell
Hinch William, beer retailer
Hodgkiss Johnson, shopkeeper
Hodgkiss Levi, draper

Hodgkiss Thomas, shopkeeper
Hodgkiss William, farmer
Holden Thomas & Son, cotton gpinners
Hope John, wheelwright and blacksmith

, Horridge William, shopkeeper
Howard William, blacksmith
Hulme Richard, beer retailer
Hurst James, shopkeeper & beer retailer
Hurst John, beer retailer
Hurst Samuel, cotton manufacturer, Lakefield 

mill
Jones George, farmer
Kirkham Thomas, innkeeper, Kenyon Arms

 Knight Thomas, shopkeeper
Leek John, shopkeeper
Lever Eliza, milliner and straw worker
Livesey John, shopkeeper, Streetgate
Makin Peter, beer retailer

 Martin William Y., M.D., L.R.C.P.E., and 
M.R.C.S.L.

Martland Richard, cheese factor, Hanging 
bank

Mather Ellis, farmer and shopkeeper
Mullineaux Lydia, beer retailer
Owen John, ironmonger
Pemberton Robert, shopkeeper
Reeves Margaret, beer retailer
Reid William C., baker
Roscow James and William, coal proprietors, 

New Watergate and Peel hall colleries
Roscow James, shopkeeper
Roscow John, boot and shoemaker
Rothwell Andrew, nankeen manufacturer
Roth well Caleb, plumber, Hilton lane
Rothwell Rilton, shopkeeper, Moor side
Rothwell Robert, farmer, Mount skip
Rushton Charles draper
Sellers Samuel, tailor and draper
Schofield Robert, beer retailer, Greenheys
Seddon John, farmer
Shields James, brickmaker
Smith John, wheelwright
Smith Hannah, linen draper
Smith Silvester, boot maker, Moor side
Stone Alien, draper
Taylor James, shopkeeper
Taylor William, boot and shoemaker
Taylor William, furniture broker
Thorpe John, oil cloth manufacturer, Walk- 

den
Tildsley Richard, shopkeeper
Tonge Sarah, New Inn
Topping Thomas, shopkeeper
Tyldsley John, beer retailer
Unsworth Henry, shopkeeper
Williams Edward, boot and shoemaker
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Worsley road Co-operative Society, grocer,
Aaron Thompson, manager 

Worthington John, shopkeeper

Wright John, coal proprietor, Hanging bank 
Wright Thomas, farmer

LITTLE LEVER.
LITTLE LEVER- is a township, and chapelry 
in the Parish of Bolton, three miles east, south­ 
east, therefrom; 9 miles N.W. from Manchester, 
a mile north-west from Bradley Pold railway; 
station, on the Liverpool and Bury line of rail­ 
way, and a mile and a half south-east from 
Halshaw Moor railway station, on the Lanca­ 
shire and Yorkshire Railway, situated at the 
junction of the Bolton and Bury and the Bol­ 
ton and Manchester Canal, ai>d bounded on the 
west by the river Irwell. The township com­ 
prises an area of 1020 statue acres, the rate­ 
able value in March, 1866, was £14,536, in 
March, 1868,^15,819, and in March of the 
present year 1870 £16,712. The population 
in 1861 was 3,890. The church of St. Mat­ 
thew is a small plain brick building, with turret 
and one bell. The living is of the annual value 
£150, in the patronage of the vicar of Bolton ; 
the Eev. James Slade, junr., B.A., of St. John's

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Bramwell Mr. Thomas, 109 High street 
Chatton Mr. George, Albert place 
Evileigh Mr. Thomas, Booth fold 
Fletcher Thomas, Esq., Lever house 
Fletcher Mr. James, Stopes house 
Fletcher Mr. Smith, Market street 
Pickford Rev. Elijah [Independent], 111 High

street 
Slade Eev. James, jun,, B.A.

COMMERCIAL.

Ashworth Thomas, beer retailer
Aspinall Mary, confectioner
Baker Betty, confectioner, Market street
Balshaw Alice, shopkeeper, Market street
Barlow Edward, tape manufacturer, Lady- 

shore mills
Barton John, manager, 119 High street
Bridson Thomas R. and Sons, bleachers and 

finishers, Lever bank
Broadbent William and Son, paper manufac­ 

turers, Cream's paper mills
Chatburn Sarah, confectioner
Chatton George, ironfounder, Lever Irbn 

Works, Market street
Cheadle James, wheelwright & blacksmith

Y

College, Cambridge, is the present vicar. The 
Wesleyans and Independents have chapels here. 
There are several mills for cotton spinning, the 
manufacture of paper, bleaching, and the ex­ 
tensive chemical works of E. Wilson, Esq., 
Fire-brick and Terra Cotta Works, CollierieFf 
&c.

POST OFFICE—W. B. Ward, sub-postmaster. 
Letters arrive by messenger from Bolton at 
7-20 a.m., and 4-15 p.m.; despatched at 9-25 
a.m., and 6-15 p.m. On Sundays one delivery 
only, at 8-55 a.m. Money order and Savings 
bank open from 9 a.m., to 5-45 p.m., and on 
Saturdays to 8 p.m.

SCHOOLS:—National (boys and girls), Robe it 
Tunstall, master ; Annie Grundy, mistress ; 
Margaret He wart, Infant mistress.

Weslcyan School, A. G. Talbot, master.

Cranshaw John, farmer, Stopes gate 
Dawson Samuel, glue, size, & chemical manu­ 

facturer
Dobie William, joiner & builder 
Dougan Thomas, plumber and glazier, High

street—see advertisement 
Edge James, farmer. Little Lever hall 
Entwistle William, farmer, Booth road 
Fletcher Edward, painter, Church street 
Fletcher Ellis, beer retailer 
Fletcher John, coal proprietor, Lady shore 
Fletcher John, beer retailer 
Fletcher Thomas, beer retailer, Hall lane 
Fletcher Thomas, cotton spinner, Well Bank 

mill; and coal proprietor* Bradley fold, 
Stopes and Bents collieries 

Fletcher Thomas, farmer, Lomax house 
Fletcher Mark, dyer, Market street 
Fletcher Samuel, greengrocer 
Graham William, manufacturing chemist 
Greenhalgh Alice, beer retailer, Hall lane 
Greenhalgh Alice, shopkeeper, Hill top 
Gregory George, M D. 27 Church street 
Grundy Alfred, farmer, Boscow road 
Hadfield James, innkeeper and shopkeeper,

Nob lane
Halliday Thomas, shopkeeper 
Hallows John, Hare and Hounds, Market st
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HALLO WSS. & C., head-stone and monu­ 
mental masons 

Hardman James, mason (John and James
Hardman), Church street 

Hardman John and James, masons and con­ 
tractors

Hardman Thomas, shopkeeper 
Haworth William, butcher, High street 
Hartshorn James, Unicorn 
Haslam Alice, shopkeeper, Hall lane 
Hayes Abel, clogger and shoemaker 
Hayes Joseph, waste dealer 
Heaton John, general dealer 
Heaton John and Son, brick makers 
Hewart William, manager, 127 High street 
Hey wood John, newsagent, Market street 
Hilton Alfred, shopkeeper 
HolkerAlice, beer retailer, Market street 
Holt Henry, farmer, Ginger fold 
HOLT JAikLES, terra cotta manufacturer, and

patentee and manufacturer of the hood
terra cotta chimney tops, Ferney side works
—see advertisement

Howcroft Peter, carrier and shopkeeper 
Hulton John, farmer, Grundy fold 
JOHNSON ROBERT, joiner and builder,

Church street
KAY JAMES, wine and spirit merchant, High

street
Kay John, beer retailer, Market street 
Kershaw Jonathan, beer retailer 
Knowles Andrew and Sons, coal proprietors

(Peter Howcroft, manager), and farmers
Ferny Side

Lansdale Joseph, beer retailer 
Lever Ellen, farmer, Dove Bank road 
Lever Thomas, farmer, Top-o'th' Acre 
Lindsay David, blacksmith 
Lingard Walter, farmer, Queen Ann Inn, 26

High street 
Little Lever Industrial Co-operative Society

grocers, drapers, butchers, and doggers
High street

Longworth Abraham, shopkeeper 
Lomax Benjamin, farmer, Marsh lane 
Lord James, boot and shoemaker, High stree
Lund Abraham, farmer, Marsh lane 
Massey James, beer retailer, Stopes

Meadows Rachel, shopkeeper, Hall lane
Mills Sarah, beer retailer
Mills Jonathan, shopkeeper, Marsh lane
Morris James, farmer, Grundy fold
Mort James, shopkeeper
Mort John, butcher, Market street
Orrell Richard, bookkeeper, 121 High street
ORR & MORRIS, terra cotta manufacturers,

Stopes Terra Cotta Works—see advertisement 
Parker William, farmer, Dove Bank road 
Partington Richard, brickmaker, Bradley fold 
PARTINGTON SAMUEL, terra cotta and

chimney top manufacturer, Bradley fold—
see advertisement

Partington William, clogger, Market street 
Partington William, shopkeeper 
Pilling Benjamin, mill furnisher, Market st—

see advertisement
Potter William, fent dealer, 58 High street 

 Robb James B., rope and twine maker and
 farmer, Marsh lane 
 SEDDON SILAS, joiner and builder, Albert

street
Sharpies Joseph, shopkeeper, High street 
Stevenson Ellen, beer retailer 

 Stott and Bury, grocers, High street
Stott James, agent, 1 John street
Tatlock Jonathan, clogger
Tatlock William, clogger
Thornley William, innkeeper, Nob Inn
Tunstall Robert, schoolmaster, 115 High st
Waist all Thomas H., cashier, 3 Avenue place

,
Walker William, shopkeeper, Market street 

| and High street
j Walker William, shopkeeper, High street 
WARD WILLIAM B., chemist and druggist,

High street
Waters, Joseph, confectioner 
Whitehead Robert, shopkeeper, Hall lane 

, Wilson Thomas, shopkeeper and cartowiier 
, Wilkinson Thomas and Richard, paper manu­ 

facturers, Lomax Bank Mills 
Wilson Edward and Co., manufacturing, 

chemists, Prestolee Alkali Works, and 56 
t Cannon street^ Manchester 

Wood William, shopkeeper, Market street 
Yates Thomas, shopkeeper and cartowner

LONGWORTH.
LONGWORTH is a township in the parish 

of Bolton, from which town it is situated 
about three and a half miles north west. 
The population in 1861 was 154, the acreage

is 1,590 ; the rateable value in March of the 
present year 1870, was £1,575. William 
Ford Hulton, Esq., is the chief land owner. 

Letters received through Bolton.
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Duxbury Andrew, farmer, Whittaker 
Fish John, farmer, Pasture house 
Fish William, farmer, Further pasture 
Haworth Eobert, cotton spinner, Longworth

mill; house, Prospect place 
Halliwell Lawrence, farmei, Pasture barn 
Hart Henry, farmer 
Hornby Peter, farmer, Critchley fold 
Houghton James, farmer, Hqlden's farm 
Mayoh Robert, farmer, Valentines

Metcalfe Thomas, farmer, Wittons 
Scholes John, wheelwright and farmer, Pas­ 

ture house
Slater William, Esq., Prospect house 
Thomasson John, farmer and beer retailer,

Lower Critchley fold 
Thwaites William, farmer 
Walmsley William, farmer, Longworth hall 
Whittle John, farmer, Whittaker 
Worthingtou Samuel, farmer, Moorside

LOSTOCK.
LOSTOCK is a township in the parish and

union of Bolton, situate about 4 miles there­
from, and is a station on the Lancashire and
Yorkshire line of Railway. It is connected
ecclesiastically with West Houghton. Here
is a chapel for Wesleyans, and a National
school. Charles Joseph Stoner, Esq., is the

Bell Mr. John Thompson, Moorfield 
Holden Mr. Edmund, Loatock hall 
Pilkington John, Esq., The Grange 
Seddon Mr. John, Rose bank

COMMERCIAL.

Ainscough John, beer retailer, Chew moor 
Boydell James, farmer, Focet hole 
Bromilow James, fanner and beer retailer,

Platt brow
Bromilow Joseph, farmer, The Oak 
Bromilow Thomas, farmer, Platt brow 
Crompton James, farmer, Morris's 
Crompton Richard, farmer, Cromptou's 
Entwistle Reuben and Co., cotton spinners,

Chew moor mill

 principal landowner. The acreage is 1,519 ;
 the rateable value in Mar. 1870, was <£5,265;
 the population in 1861 was 580.
 Letters through Bolton-le-Moors; the
 nearest money order office is at Westhoughton. 
 National School: Mrs. Partington, mis­ 

tress

Hart John, beer retailer, Lostock lane 
Holcroft James, beer retailer, Chew moor 
Howarth Moses, farmer, Lostock mill 
Howorth Thomas, farmer, Carr wall 
Markland John, farmer, Lostock hall 
Jones Martha, Junction Inn 
King George, farmer, Bartons 
Ormrod George, farmer, Chadwicks 
Partington James, assistant overseer, St.

John's School, Chew Moor 
Seddon Zacheus, grocer, Chew moor 
Shaw Ralph, farmer, Sunny brow 
Smith William, farmer, Wicken Lees 
Swindley Henry, farmer, Moss hall

MIDDLE HULTON.
MIDDLE HULTON is a township in the par­ 
ish of Deane situate about 3^ miles south-south­ 
west from Bolton. The population in 1861 
was 790; the acreage is 1,283. The rateable 
value of which was in March, 1866, £4,252 ;

Booth Mr. Timothy, Moss hall 
Hughes William, Esq., Moor side 
Ingham Mr. John, Moor side 
Threlfall Mr. James, Moor side 
Winward Mr. Ralph, Moor side

March, 1868, £4,668; and in March of the 
present year, 1870, £4,848. The Earl of Elles- 
mere is lord of the manor.

Letters received through Bolton.
COMMERCIAL.

Ashcroft John, farmer, Mort fold 
Atherton James, farmer, Spade fold 
Bent James, Red lion 
Booth James, farmer, Lead-beaters 
Booth Timothy, farmer, Moss hall
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Grompton John, farmer, Scot meadow
Cunliffe Nicholas, farmer, Mill's brow
Dickinson Henry,£farmer, TopVth' brow
Fray James, farmer, Edge fold
Green Richard, farmer, Slack fold
Green Thomas, farmer, Hulme fold and Old

Israels
Grundy Benjamin, farmer, Bank house 
Grundy Jane, farmer, Bushkill 
Hall John, farmer, Lomas brow 
Hampson Matthew, farmer & quarry-master,

Gilded holly
Haynes William, currier and leather dresser 
Heaton Betty, farmer, Rosemary lane 
Hickson Richard, farmer, Old rodgers

Hickson Richard, farmer, Old graces 
Higson Richard, farmer, Rosemary lane 
Makinson Betty, farmer, Rosemary lane 
Newton WiJliam, farmer, Hulton hayes 
Partington Thomas, farmer, Umbertons 
Platt James, farmer, Newgate 
Seddou Nathaniel, farmer, Top o'th' height 
Seddon James, farmer, Edge fold 
Seddon Nathaniel, farmer, Top o'th' height 
Seddon William, farmer, Timothy fold 
Shaw Robert, farmer, Lane ends 
Smethurst Alice, farmer, Closes 
Worthington Ralph, farmer, Clough 
Yatcs Xancy, farmer, White gate

OVER HULTON.
OVER HULTON is a township in the parish 
of Deane, four miles S.S.W. from Bolton, 
containing 1,300 statute acres, the rateable 
value of which was in March, I860, .£4,982 ; 
March, 1868, .£5,941; and in March, 1870, 
£6,268. The population in 1861 was 447. 
The township abounds with coal, and is the 
sole property of the Hultons ; the hall, the

PRIVATE~RESIDENTS.

Crompton Mr. James, Rawlinsous
Hulton William Ford, Esq., J.P., dep. lieut.,

Hulton park
Hulton W. W. B., Esq., Hulton hall 
Kersley Miss Frances, Woodlands* 
Sharp Henry, Esq., Newbrook house 
Walch Mr. William, Rose cottage

COMMERCIAL.

Boardman Peter, farmer, Higher brook house
Bradley Betty, farmer, Nixons 
Bradley Sarah, farmer, Horridge fold 
Bromilow Arthur, farmer, Garnett fold 
Crompton Joseph, Stag's Head

•esidence of William Ford Hulton, Esq., J.P., 
s of modern construction, having a semi­ 
circular wing and portico. The park is 
astefully laid out in plantations and exten­ 

sive pleasure grounds.

Letters through Bolton, which is the
nearest money order office.

Edge Thomas, farmer, Knowles bridge 
Gleave John, farmer, Wood end 
Hampson Joseph, farmer, Yew green 
Heaton James, farmer, Deane, Moorside 
Lewis Moses, shopkeeper, Johnson row 
Markland|Abigail, farmer, Hermon bank 
Markland John, farmer. Beech hall 
Xall Henry and Co., farmers, Park 
Partington John, farmer, Lower brook house 
Rawlings David, farmer and innkeeper,

Hulton Arms
 Seddon Peter, quarry master, Daubhill 
Shaw Richard, farmer, Deardens 
Southern Robert, farmer, Edge 
Tickle James, farmer, Makants 
Williarnson William, farmer, Back gates

QUARLTON.
QUARLTON is a small township, in the 

parish of Bolton, from which it is T> miles 
north-north-east, and three-quarters of a mile 
south-east from Chapeltown railway station, 
in the Bolton union and county court district.
Here are calico print works. The acreage is

500. The rateable value in March, 1870, 
was £1,247. Henry Wright, Esq., is lord 
of the manor and chief landowner. Popula- 
tion in 1861, 253.

Letters received through Bolton. The 
 ̂ nearest money order office is at Edge worth.
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Walker Mr. George, The Pallett
COMMERCIAL.

Barnes Henry, farmer, Wickenlow hill
Brooks John, farmer, The Heys
Colman Henry, farmer
Cook and Charnley, farmers, Temple
Entwistle Edmund, farmer, Longshaw head
Entwistle William, farmer, Redhead

Leach Squire, shopkeeper, Waives 
Orrell Isaac, farmer, Meadow croft 
Orrell Richard, beer retailer, Quarlton lane 
Orrell William, wheelwright, Meadow crofts 
Urmston Robert, Red Lion, Waives 
Walker Robert, calico printer, Quarlton vale, 

and farmer, Penton, Pallett, and the Knotts 
Whalley James, farmer, Higher barn 
Wright, J. F. D. A., farmer, Quarlton fold

RUMWORTH
Is a township adjoining Bolton. It comprises an area of 1,300 statute acres, the rateable 
value of which was in March, 1866, £8,844; March, 1868, £9,149; and in March, 1 1870, 
£10,118

(For list of names, see Deane—page

Sharpies, Astley Bridge, Belmont and Neighbourhood.
SHARPLES is a township and district parish, 
separated from Bolton for ecclesiastical pur­ 
poses, in Bolton parish, and about 2| miles 
north therefrom. The population of this town­ 
ship in 1861 was 3,294, and comprises an area 
of 3,920 statute acres. The rateable value was 
in March, 1866, £13,422, March, 1868, £14, 
137; and in the same month of the present year, 
1870, £14,050. Cotton spinning is carried on 
extensively here, and there are also large 
bleach and paper works in the neighbourhood. 
The church of St. Paul is a neat stone edifice 
in a mixed style of architecturej and was con­ 
secrated in 1848. It has a nave, chancel, 
and tower surmounted by a spire. The living 
is of the annual value of £150 with residence, 
in the patronage of the Crown and the Bishop 
of Manchester, alternately, and held by the 
Rev. ^Frederick Brindley, M.A. Here are 
chapels for Wesleyans and Baptists. National 
and British schools.

At Belmont, a hamlet in the above township, 
is a church dedicated to St. Peter. It was con­ 
secrated in 1850, and was erected from moneys

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Ashworth Mr. James, Spring cottage, Black­ 
burn old road

Ashworth John J. Esq., Ivy bank 
Armstrong Mrs. Betsy, 41 Park road 
Bt»yli& Mr. Henry, Yew tree cottage 
Bertenshaw Mr. Thomas, Hills gate, 211

, Blackburn road 
Birley Rev. John S., J.P., Moss Lee

left by the Wright family for that purpose. 
The living is of the annual value of £120, and 
held by the Rev. William Wall, M,A., of Jesus 
College, Cambridge.

ASTLEY BRIDGE is partly in this township.
POST AND MONEY ORDER OFFICE, Astley 

Bridge—John Hargraves, sub-postmaster. 
Letters arrive from Bolton at 6-40 a.m.; dis­ 
patched at 10, and 11-45 a.m., and 7-20 p.m

SCHOOLS:—British (Blackburn old road), 
James Cunliffe, master; British (bank top), 
Thomas Bertenshaw, master; National (St. 
Paul's, Astley bridge), William Rideout, mas­ 
ter, Harriet Sanderson, mistress ; National 
(Belmont), James Longworth, master.
Astley Bridge Conservative News room, School
Brow, Blackburn road; Abraham White- 

head, secretary
Astley Bridge Reform News room, 24 Black­ 

burn road; Samuel Greenhalgh, secretary
Local Board office, 148 Blackburn road; 

Thomas Dawsou, clerk

Briggs Arthur L., Esq.
Briggs Christopher, Eaq., The Lees
Bolton Mrs. Thomas, Spring bank, Blackburn

old road
Brindley Rev. Frederick, M.A., The Vicarage 
Coop Mr. John, 85 Park road 
Cooper Mrs. Rebecca, 45 Seymour road 
Dawson Mr. Christopher W., 59 Park road 
Duxbury Mr. Peter, 53 Bank top
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Evans Mr. John, 46 Park road 
Fletcher Adam, Esq., East view 
Gorton James, Esq., The Beeches 
Greenhalgh Nathaniel, Esq., Thorny Dyke 
Greenhalgh Thomas, Esq., Thorny Dyke 
Grey Arthur, Esq., Eagley, L.B. 
Harper William, Esq., Astley house 
Haselden Thomas, Esq., Rose cottage 
Haworth Mrs. Emma, Spring bank, Blackburn

old road
Haworth Mr. Yates, 79 Blackburn road 
Hick John, Esq., J.P., Hill top 
Hiton Mr. John, East view 
Hodgkinson Mr. William B., 61 Park road 
Hodson Mr. John, Willow bank 
Hollins Mr. Carter, Astley bridge 
Hollins Samuel, Esq., 47 Seymour road 
Howarth Mr. Robert, Hills fold cottage, 27

Belmont road
Lever Mr. Thomas, Ashbank 
Lever Mr. Thomas, 45 Park road 
Livy John S., Esq., Strathmore house, Sey­ 

mour road
Longworth Miss Jane, Horrocks fold 
Marsden Jeremiah, Esq., Yew tree 
Murray George H., Esq., 55 Park road 
Murton Frederick, Esq., 53 Seymour road 
Orrell Mr. William, Hills gate, 213 Blackburn

road
Parkhouse Mr. William, Willow bank 
Pilling Mr. Abraham, Seymour road 
Rothwell Marquiss de, Sharpies hall 
Sharpies John, Esq., Hill cot 
Slater Mrs. Emma, Wilton grange, Seymour

road
Slater James, Esq., 43 Seymour road 
Slater John A., Esq., High lawn 
Skidmore Mr. John, 51 Park road 
Taylor Rowland, Esq., 47 Park road 
Thwaites Thomas, Esq., Bank house 
Wall Rev. Win., M.A., Belmont 
Walker Mr. Roger, 43 Park road 
Warr Mrs. George, 53 Park road 
Warr Mrs. Jonathan, 44 Park road 
Wilding Mr. Joseph, 49 Park road 
Wilkinsou Thomas, Esq., White hill 
Winstanley Mr. James S., Blackburn old road 
Winstanley Mr. William, 68 Blackburn old 

road
COMMERCIAL.

Ainsworth Joseph, shoemaker, Belmont 
Ainsworth Robert, shopkeeper, 26 Blackburn

road 
Alexander Joseph, beer retailer, 68 Belmont

road, and quarry master, Horrocks foldj
L.B.

Almond Thomas, farmer, Old Nells 
Anderton Susannah, farmer and quarry owner,

Horrocks fold, L.B.
Anderson Mrs. ——, farmer, Lower Moss lee 
Archer Thomas, newsagent, Lamb brow, 49

Blackburn road 
Ashcroft Samuel, shopkeeper, 179 Blackburn

road 
Ashworth John, cotton spinner, Astley bridge,

L.B. 
Atherton William, pawnbroker, 13 Blackburn

road 
Bancroft William, plumber and glazier, 161

Blackburn road 
Baron Lettice, beer retailer, 89 Blackburn

road 
Bateson William, shopkeeper, 85 Blackburn

road 
Bennett John, tailor, draper, and smallware

dealer, 102 Blackburn road 
Bennett Thomas, shopkeeper, 98 Blackburn

road 
Bertenshaw Thomas, schoolmaster, Hills gate,

211 Blackburn road 
Bibby Thomas, farmer, Thorns farm 
Bromiley James, shopkeeper, Bank top 
Brooks Robert, jun., painter, paperhangher,

&c., 78 Blackburn road—see advertisement 
Brown Hargreaves, butcher, 52 and 166

Blackburn road 
Bullough Benjamin, confectioner, 74 Black­ 

burn road
Bullough Joseph, furniture broker, 2 Eden st 
Charnley Thomas, quarry owner, Horrocks

fold, L.B.; house, 26 Broad-o'th'-lane 
Clay ton John, hair dresser, 82 Blackburn rd 
Clemmet Peter, greengrocer, 84 Blackburn

road
Collins Martha, shopkeeper, 6 Blackburn road 
Crompton Joshua, coal and wood dealer,

1 Longworth court, Blackburn old road 
Crook Luke, farmer, Hill meadow 
Crosslcy Fanny, milliner and dressmaker, 76

Blackburn road 
Crowther Eli, watch and clock maker, 68

Blackburn road
Cruickshank Thomas, boot and shoemaker, 

172 Blackburn road
Dickinson James, shopkeeper, 190 Blackburn

road 
Duckworth John, beer retailer, 22 Blackburn

old road 
Duckworth Mary, beer retailer, 64 Blackburn

old road
Eastham John, constable, 48 Belmont road
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Eden and Thwaites, bleachers, dyers, and 
finishers, Water Meetings bleach works

Edge Adam, beer retailer, 44 and 46 Black­ 
burn old road

Emmett John, provision dealer. Belmont | 
Entwistle John, skip maker, Bank
Farraday Sarah, milliner and dressmaker, 178 .

Blackburn road l
Feilding John, shopkeeper, 116 Blackburn rd |
Fish Nicholas, farmer and coal proprietor 

Higher Folds farm
Foole Roger, beer retailer, 20 Blackburn old 

road
Freeman John, shopkeeper, 60 Blackburn old 

road
Gabriel Brothers, doublers and thread manu­ 

facturers, Sharpies doubling mill
Gleave Annie, milliner and dressmaker, 96 

Blackburn road; house, 14 Church street
Greenhalgh James, shopkeeper, 58 Blackburn 

road
Greenhalgh Joseph, shopkeeper, 174 Black­ 

burn road
Gregory James, shopkeeper, 13 Belmont road
Grimshaw William, Lamb Inn, 55 Blackburn 

road
Guest George, farmer, Broad oW lane
Haddock James, farmer, The Gale
Haddock Mary, Day School, East Cottage, 220

Blackburn road
Haddock Thomas, fanner, Horrocks fold, L.B.
Hardman & Isherwood, wood and tin packing

case makers, 103 Blackburn road
Hardman Peter, shopkeeper & beer retailer,

19 & 21 Blackburn road
Hargreaves John, shopkeeper, Post office, 50

Blackburn road
Haslam John and Co., cotton spinners, Old

brick mill
Haslam Peter, farmer, Fern hill
Haworth Alice, linen draper, 57 Blackburn

road
Heapy Abraham, joiner, 5 Greenwood vale,

Blackburn road
Helme Adam, Bull's head, and farmer, Bel­

mont
Helme Benjamin, Black Dog
Hesketh T. M. & Sons, cotton spinners and

doublers, New Mills, Astley bridge
Higham Thomas, linen draper, 8 Blackburn

road
Holliday Joseph, Lawson's Arms, 101 Black­

burn road
Holliday Rachel, farmer, Horrocks fold, L.B.
Hollins Samuel and Co., hosiery merino spin­

ners, Hill fold mill, Astley bridge

Holt William, beer retailer, 16 Blackburn
road

Hopwood Thomas, shopkeeper, 9 Belmont rd 
Home John, farmer, Rose cottage
Ho ward Betsy, shopkeeper, 94 Blackburn rd
Hunt Thurston, farmer
Isherwood Isaac, farmer, Wards cote
lsherwooc^ James, packing-case maker (Hard-

man & Isherwood), 23 Belmont road 
Isherwood John, clogger, 11 Blackburn road 
Isherwood Thomas, farmer, Hall house farm
Kay Elizabeth, dressmaker, 11 Belmont road 
Kay Richard, linen draper, 11 Belmont road 
Kellett William, tailor, draper and under­ 

taker, 93 Blackburn road 
Knowles Andrew, coal proprietor, Sweet loves

colliery
Knowles John, shopkeeper, 10 Blackburn rd 
Lancaster James, shopkeeper, 208 Blackburn

road
Lancaster Thomas, butcher, 56 Blackburn rd 
Langshaw Jesse, beer retailer, 151 Blackburn

road 
Lea Hannah, milliner and dressmaker, 30

Blackburn road
Leach James, stonemason and quarry owner, 

(J. & J. Leach) Scait moor; house, 80 Bel­ 
mont road

 Leach John, stonemason and quarryowner 
(J. & J. Leach), Scait moor ; house, 66 Bel­ 
mont road

 Leach J. and J., stonemasons and quarry- 
masters, Scait moor

 Leadley John, tailor, 34 Blackburn road 
Lee John, farmer, Oldhams 

 Lee Mary, dressmaker, 152 Blackburn road 
Leigh 11. and J., general smiths, Vulcan place 

 Lever John, beer retailer, 54 Blackburn road 
Lever Robert, registrar of births, deaths, and

marriages, Ash bank, Blackburn road 
 Levingston Robert, beer retailer, Little Bolton,

Higher End 
 Lomax John, shopkeeper and oatcake baker,

20 Blackburn road
 Longworth Adam, beer retailer, Belmont 
Longworth Alice, farmer, Rose Cottage 
Longworth & Co., bleachers, Spring Field 

 Longworth Jonathan, farmer, Cote Meadow 
Lord Thomas, joiner and builder (Shanks and

 Lord), 86 Blackburn road 
Mallison James, salesman, Hill Fold House,

 38 Belmont road 
Marsden Elizabeth, shopkeeper, 61 Blackburn

road
 Mellor Lydia, dressmaker, 8 Edge street 
Metcalfe Richard, farmer, Horrocks Fold
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Murton George & Co., yarn and counterpane
bleachers, Sharpies Bleach Works

Naylor Ebenezer, farmer, Harrow croft
Nield John, shopkeeper, 5 Taylor street
Nightingale Thomas, shopkeeper, 38 Black­

burn road
Orrell Peter, shopkeeper, 104 Blackburn road
Orrell William, foreman, Hills gate, 213

Blackburn road
Parker Elizabeth, shopkeeper, 97 Blackburn

road
Partington Joseph, beer retailer, 156 Black­

burn road
Pendlebury William, shopkeeper, 154 Black­

burn road
Pilling Abraham, quarry owner, Scait Moor,

L.B.
Pollard James, linen draper and coal dealer,

122 Blackburn road
Pollitt J. and W., quarry owners, Horrocks

Fold, L.B.—see advertisement
PROBERT JOHN, wheelwright and smith,

150 Blackburn road
Ridings Thomas, greengrocer and fishmonger,

67 Blackburn road
Rogerson George, shoemaker, 63 Blackburn rd
Roscow William, beer retailer, 2 Blackburn rd
Rostron James, townsman, Bank Cottage, 30

Belmont road
Rudd Joshua, collared brawn manufacturer,

186 Blackburn road
Rudd Margaret, straw hat maker, 186 Black-

road
Scholes James, painter, 87 Blackburn road
Scholes John, painter, &c., 210 Blackburn rd
Scholes Richard, plumber, glazier, and gas- 

fitter, 201 and 203 Blackburn road
Scholes Squire, painter, etc, 170 Blackburn 

road
Settle Jonathan, quarry owner, Horrock's 

fold, L B
Shanks and Lord, joiners and builders, 194 

Blackburn road

 Shanks John, joiner and builder (Shanks and 
Lord), 92 Blackburn road

Shanks William, clogger, 72 Blackburn road ; 
house, 23 Bank top

 Simm Jonathan, clogger, 182 Blackburn rd
Skinner Alexander, joiner, builder, & timber 

merchant, 88 Blackburn road
 Smith James, shopkeeper, 70 Belmont road
Smith William, shopkeeper, 180 Blackburn 

 road
Stockley James, boot & shoemaker, 23 Eden 

 street
Stones John and Co., cotton spinners, New 

 Mills, and No. 1 Mill, Astley bridge
Syddall James, shopkeeper, 54 Belmont road

 Syddall Robert, beer retailer, 162 Blackburn 
road

 Taylor John, newsagent, etc., 100 Blackburn 
road

 Taylor Samuel, shopkeeper, 44 Blackburn rd
Taylor John, washing and wringing machine 

 maker and blacksmith, 3 Blackburn old rd
Teal Thomas, Jun., chemist and druggist, 62 

 Blackburn road
Tristram William, jaconet & cambric manu­ 

facturer
Turner Charles & Co., paper manufacturers, 

 Spring side paper works
Turner William, cow keeper, 66 Blackburn 

 road
Waddicker William, farmer, Bank top

 Walsh Margaret, farmer, High houses
West Stephen K., butcher, 46 & 176 Black­ 

burn road
Whittle Dan, beer retailer, 95 Blackburn rd
Wood Robert, quarry master (Wood and 

Warburton), 16 Broad-o'th'-lane
Wood Thomas, quarry master, (Wood & War- 

burton) 22 Broad-o'th'-lane
Wood William, beer retailer, Horrocks fold, 

Belmont road, L B
Woods and Warburton, quarry owners, Scait 

moor, L B

TONGE-WITH-H AULGH.
(For Names in Htndnh see Bolton.)

Is a joint township adjoining Bolton, con- Bradshaw, and reach the confines of Great 
taining about 1,030 statute acres, and a and Little Bolton. In the year 1821, a 
population in 1861 of 3,589. The rateable borough was opened within about a hundred 
value in March, 1866, was ^18,513 ; March, yards of the canal, and was found to contain 
1868, £14,498; and in March, 1870, £16,189. two kist-vaens, an urn of red earth, a num- 
Haulgh forms part of the parliamentary bor- ber of mouldered bones, and a bronze spear, 
ough of Bolton, the township extends in two head, arid aimour. 
angles between the rivers Croal, Tonge, and
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Tonge Moor school, T. R. Heap, master

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Ainsworth Miss, Tonge moor 
Ainsworth Mr. Joseph, Tonge moor 
Bewick Mr. William, 1 Castle hill 
Bromilow Mr. Arthur, Thicketford 
Duxbury Mr. Andrew, Hall-i'th'-wood 
Duxbury Mr. Yates, Hall-i'th'-wood cottage 
Green George, Esq., Eastfield 
Jones David, Esq., Lower wood 
Knowles Robert Walmsley, Esq., Meadow

side 
Mason Tate William, Esq., M.A., Edditch

hall
Ryder Mr. Thomas, Turner bridge cottage 
Schofield Mr. Thomas, Tonge moor 
Spencer Samuel, Esq., Hey house 
Thomasson John P., Esq., Moorfield 
Winder Robert, Esq., Ainswprth house 
Wood Samuel, Esq., Castle hill

COMMERCIAL.

Aetin Thomas, shopkeeper, Tonge moor 
Bewick Arthur James, cashier, 5 Castle hill 
Bleakley Richard, joiner and coffin maker,

Tong fold 
Booth James, agent—Royal Liver Society,

Bury road
Bogle Mary, farmer, The Rough houses 
Bromiley Arthur, farmer, Hall-iW-wood 
Bromiley Arthur, farmer, Thicketford 
Bromiley John G., clogger, Tong moor 
Charnley Thomas, draper and tobacconist,

Bury road

Clifford Thomas, farmer and beer retailer,
Tong Studds 

Crook John and Son, cotton waste dealers,
Scope-o'th'-lane 

Davies Moses, shopkeeper, Tong fold 
Diggle Abraham, dyer, Ellis fold 
Duxbury Richard, manager, 4 Castle hill 
Duxbury, Yates and Son, paper manufacturers,

Hall i'th' wood 
Gillibrand Janu farmer, Meetings 
Gorse Jane, Starkie & Arms 
Gost Jesse, shopkeeper, 7 Castle hill 
Hard castle Thomas and Son, bleachers, dyers

and finishers, Firwood works 
Harwood John, plumber, Tong moor 
Haslam Mary, farmer, Tong fold 
Haslam Nancy, beer retailer, Tong fold 
Henshaw Daniel, blacksmith, Tong moor 
Holden Andrew, wheelwright & blacksmith,

Tong moor
Knowles and Green, bleachers, Undershore 
Markland Thomas, farmer, High bank 
Parker Jabez, farmer, Tong head 
Pickup James, beer retailer, Tong fold 
PILKINGTOtf THOMAS, watch maker,

Bury road 
Ryder Thomas, Son, and Co., tool makers, &c..

Turner ̂ Bridge Ironworks—see advertisement 
Royle Samuel, beer retailer, Tong fold 
Scowcroft Jethro, coal proprietor, Tong colliery 
Sharpies William, beer retailer, Bury road 
Shipperbottom Richard, beer retailer, Tootil

bridge
Smith William, farmer, Tong fold 
Wilkinson Henry, farmer, Tong green 
Yates James, farmer, High brow 
Yates Peter, farmer, Shipwreck

Turton, Bromley Cross, Chapeltown, Egerton, Eagley
Bridge and Neighbourhood.

TURTON is a township in the parish and
Union of Bolton, four miles north, situated
on the Blackburn line of railway, the Bolton
turnpike road, and a small rivulet called
Bradshaw brook. The Church, dedicated to
St. Ann is situated at Chapeltown ; it is a
neat stone building, and has nave, aisles,
chancel, porch,.and tower containing one bell,
east window of richly-stained glass, a spire
and pinnacles, an organ, and part of a library,
left by Humphrey Chetham, Esq., in 1654.
The register dates from 1813. The living is
of the annual value of XI50 ; the Rev. James

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ogden King Spencer is the present vicar. 
There are Chapels for Independents, Presby­ 
terians, and Unitarians, and several Day and 
Sunday Schools in the township. A fair is 
held at Chapeltown on the 4th and 5th of 
September yearly, for horses, cattle, etc. 
The township is partly in Christchurch and 
St. Ann's districts. There are cotton mills, 
paper, print, bleach works, and several quar­ 
ries in the township. There are charities of 
upwards of £30 yearly value. Turton tower 
an old stone building, having two gables of 
wood and plaster in front, is the residence of
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James Kay, Esq.; in Camden's time it was the rateable value was in March, 1866, 
£15,370; March, 1868, £15,339 ; and in 
March, 1870, £16,946.

 windows. The living is of the annual value 
 £150, with residence, in the gift of the vicar 
 of Bolton, and held by the Rev. Ralph Cul­ 
 vert Williams Croft, B.A., of Trinity College, 
 Dublin. The Ecclesiastical district embraces 
 Birtenshaw, Dimple, Dunscar, Eagley bridge, 
 Egerton, Hardmans, Stanrose, Stones, Top­ 
 pings and Walmsley. There are chapels for 
 Independents, Wesleyans, and Unitarians, 
 National and British schools. Here are ex­ 
 tensive cotton, bleaching, and dyeworks. The 
 land is chiefly pasture.

 paper manufactory and ironfoundry. There 
, is a well-built School at Eagley bridge, which 
 is licensed for divine service; it was erected 
by Messrs. Chadwick and Brothers.

, British, Egerton (boys and girls), John Wni. 
, Sumner, master ; Elizabeth Armstrong, 
 mistress

t National, Egerton, Maria Hartley, mis­  tress
s National, Chapeltown, William Thos. Dixon, 

master
Conveyance—Messrs. Greenwood & Holden's 

. omnibus runs between Egerton and Bolton 
, on Mondays and Saturdays
' Carriers pass between Bolton and Blackburn

Deakin Rev. James, Moss cottage, Egerton
Deakin Mr. Edward, Dewhurst house, Egerton
Poster Peter, Esq., Holly bank
France Mr. Frank, Cousin fold
Galindo Rev. Philemon Alfred, B.A., Brad- 

shaw brow
e Greenhalgh Mr. Joseph, Vale house

Hamer Mr. John, Spring terrace
Isherwood Samuel, Esq., Bank house, Dun- 

scar
Kay James, Esq., Turton tower
Knowles Mr. James, The Laurels
Lewis Mr. William, Spring terrace
Lowe Mr. Jesse, Spring terrace
Lowe Mr. Peter, Spring terrace
Marson Gervase, Esq., Eagley bank, L.B

., Mather Mr. William, Park terrace, Eagley 
bank, L.B

the residence of the illustrious family of 
Orrell. The population of the whole town­ 
hip in 1861 was 4,513; the acreage is 4110;

EGERTON is a well-built, neat village of
stone, pleasantly situated on the Bolton and
Blackburn turnpike road, three miles north
from Bolton, and about a mile and a half
north-west from Bromley Cross railway sta­
tion. The Established Church, called Christ
Church, situated at Walmsley, is a stone
building in the early English style of archi­
tecture, was erected in 1839, and was partly
rebuilt and enlarged in 1868. It has nave,
aisles, chancel, and tower containing one bell,
and surmounted with pinnacles ; the interior
contains an organ and three stained glass

EAGLEY BRIDGE is a neat hamlet, 2| miles
south-west from Chapeltown railway station
and is separated from Eagley bank by a
small rivulet on the bank of which there is a

Post Office, Money Order, Saving's Bank
and Telegraph Office, Egerton, James May oh
postmaster. Letters through Bolton, by
foot post, arrive at 7-45 a.m.; despatched a
8-15 p.m. There is a post office receiving
house at Turton bottoms. 
Insurance Agent,—Royal Fire & Life, Jame

Hoyle, Turton bottoms
SCHOOLS.

British, Eagley bridge (boys and girls), Win
Pennington, master ; Miss Jane Gregory
mistress; Miss Frances Kelley, infants
mistress

PRIVATE RESIDENTS.

Appleton Henry, Esq., Horrobin cottage 
Appleton Thomas, Esq., Horrobin house 
Armitstead Robert, Esq., Dunscar 
Arrowsmith Thomas, Esq., Lower house 
Ashworth Edmund, Esq., J.P., Egerton hall 
Ashworth Edmund, Jun. Esq., Egerton hous
Ashworth Geo. Binns, Esq., Birtenshaw 
Ashworth Henry, Esq., J.P., The Oaks 
Ashworth John, Esq., Rose hill 
Ashworth Samuel, Esq., Egertou cottage 
Booth James, Esq., Spring bank 
Brewster Mr. John, Vale view, Eagley 
Cannon John, Esq., J.P., Spring bank 
Cartwright Misses, Windy harbour 
Clarke Rev. James, The Manse, Egerton 
Croft Rev. Ralph Culvert Williams, B.A

Walmsley parsonage, Egerton

s




